B S R & Assaociates LLP
Chartered Accountants

49f179A, 39 Floor,

Syama Business Centre,
NH-47 Bypass Road,

Vigttita, Kochi — 882 019 - India

Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (the
“Company"} which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Management's and Board of Cirectors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
incfuding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standaione
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to céase operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal controt relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

*+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

\
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standaione
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 28 to the standalone financial
statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 39 (a) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

+  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 39 (b) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or ctherwise, that the Company shall:

+ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

+  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} above contain any material misstatement.

e, The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year

\
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(186) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 218255
Date: 14 June 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255AKXTOV8362
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) {(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) ()

()

(d)

(e)

(ii) (a)

)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a reguiar programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee, except as disclosed in Note 34, certain lease agreements where Company
is in the process of executing the lease agreements.) disclosed in the standalone financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
including Right of Use assets or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during
the year.. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company except as follows:
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

Amount in Indian Rupees Millions

Quar | Name Particulars | Amountas | Amount as Amount Whether
ter | of bank per books | reported in of return/state
of account the difference ment
quarterly subsequent
return/ ly rectified
| statement
[ Q1 2,622.50 3,040.00 (417.50)
Q2 1,497 .14 1,692.90 (195.76) | No. Refer
F- Federal | Inventory Note 14(b)
Q3 Bank 1,057.64 1,140.00 (82.36) | to
Standalone
Q4 2.022.21 2,420.00 {397.79) | Financial
Statements
Q1 2,342 91 2,020.00 322.91
Other
Q2 current 839.65 530.73 30892 | No. Refer
Federal | liahilities Note 14(b)
Q3 Bank ({Trade 862.87 410.00 452.87 | to
payable and Standalone
Q4 Contract 952.06 §70.00 {17.94) | Financial
liabilities) Statements

(iii)

(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. The Company has provided guarantee
and security and has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to Companies during
the year in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has not
provided any guarantee or security, granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to limited liahility partnership or any other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans or stood guarantee as below:

Amount in Indian Rupees Millions

Particulars Guarantees Loans

Aggregate amount during the year
Subsidiaries*

24348 15.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 763.54 61.88
date

Subsidiaries*

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, guaraniees provided, security given
during the year and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature

of loans and guarantees provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest

of the Company. Page 6 of 13
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(©

(d)

(e)

{f

(iv}

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (@)

(0

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ocur examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security
given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {"the Act’) have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the sales and
service of automobiles and related services. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Income-Tax, Service Tax and Sales
Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

Name of the Nature of Disputed Amount Period to Forum
statute dues Amount (in paid under which the where
Rs.) protest {in amount dispute is
Rs.) relates pending
| Kerala Value Sales tax, 1,094,492 381,473 201112 & KVAT
| Added Tax interest and 201213 Appellate
Act, 2003 penalty Tribunal,
Emakulam
Kerala Value Sales tax, 50,980 15,294 2014-15 Commissio
Added Tax interest and ner of
Act, 2003 penalty Commercia
| Taxes,
Trivandrum
Kerala Value Sales tax, 96,427,318 847,760 2011-12 to Deputy
Added Tax interest and 2015-16 Commissio
Act, 2003 penalty ner of
Appeals,
Ermakulam
Kerala Value Sales tax, 726,576 383,323 2008-07 to Deputy
Added Tax interest and 2011-12 Commissio
Act, 2003 penalty ner of
Appeals,
Trivandrum
Finance Act, | Service tax, 5,692,710 361,428 2006-07to | Commissio
1994 interest and 2017-18 ner
penalty Appeals,
Emakulam
Finance Act, | Service tax, 5,145 957 604,382 20086-07 to Customs
1994 interest and 201314 Excige and
penalty Service
Tax
Appeliatte
Tribunal,
Bangalore
Finance Act, | Service tax, 2,452 049 318,053 2006-07 to Customs
1994 interest and 2016-17 Excise and
penalty Service
Tax
Appellatte
Tribunal,
Chennai
Finance Act, | Service tax, 465,580 17,460 2015-16 Commissio
1994 interest and ner
penalty Appeals,
Chennai
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

M

(x) (&

Income Tax Income tax 3,745,118 5,037,642 2003-04 & Income tax
Act, 1961 and interest 2007-08 Appellate
Tribunal,
Ernakulam
Income Tax Income tax 9,469,518 9,052,909 2002-03 & Commissio
Act, 1961 and interest 201112 ner of
income Tax
(Appeals),
Ernakulam
Income Tax Income tax 3,832,125 3,832,125 2006-07 to Central
Act, 1961 and interest 2008-09 Processing
Centre,
Bangalore
Income Tax Income tax 2.443 990 287 560 2011-12 Additional
Act, 1961 and interest Commissio
ner of
Incorme
Tax,
Emakulam
Income Tax Income tax 376,259 Nil 2001-02 The Kerala
Act, 1961 and interest High Court

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of icans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as
defined under the Act

According to the information and explanations given {0 us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act)

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
Page 9 of 13
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standatone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(b)

{xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xiil)

(xiv) (a)

{b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

C)

(xvii)

(xviif)

(xix}

(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3({x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x){b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
heen noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given tc us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the intemal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explainations given to us, the Group does not have any CIC
as part of the Group. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(d} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash fosses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial stalements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 30 (a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForB S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:116231W/\W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.; 218255
Date: 14 June 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255AKXTOV8362
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date}

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Popular
Vehicles and Services Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such intemal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the *Guidance Note™).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalcne financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Page 12 ¢f 13



B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company;, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that cowld have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;116231W/W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.; 218255
Date: 14 June 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255AKXTOV8362
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Siandalone Balance Sheed as at I1 March 2022
(Al amonnts in Indian Ropees million)

Assels
Non—current assels
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Ripht-of-use assets
Intangille assets
Financial assels
lnyestments
Other financial assets
Income tax assels (et}
Defered tax assels (net}
Qther non-cunent assels
Toial nan-current assets
Current assets
Ivenlonies
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balznces other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assels
Other current assels
Total current assets
Aszets classified as held for sale
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capilal
(hher equity

Total equity

Liabilities
MNon-current liabillties
Financial liabilities
Borvowings
Lezse ligbilities
Other nove=curent liabilities
Provisions
Total non-currend liabilitics
Current liabilities
Financial habilities
Bomowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
- Tatal owistanding dues of inicro and small enterprises
- Total oulstanding dues of ¢reditors other than micro and small enterprises
Other financial habilities
Provisions
Income 1ax liabilities (net)
Other cwwrent liabilities
Tolal current Ligbilities
Total equity and liabilities

Signifi " tine nolich
B el

The accompanying notes form an intepgral part of the standalone financial statements

Asg per ou report of even date altached
Jor BS R & Associates LLP

Charteryd Acconmtants

sstmtion number: 11623 1W W= 100024

Fim g

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No - 218255

Kochi
14 June 2022

Notes As at Asat
30 March 2022 31 March 2021
4 158625 1,424 38
4 12303 161 16
34 222356 1,403 63
5 4028 49 20
& 607 58 62008
12 24879 pri)
27 3805 30.71
27 8252 9030
T e 1837
506718 408424
B 200404 1,42534
[ 15,89 -

o 6115 B58.97
103 3000 35462
i 1.84 22 R2
12 70,46 54 68
T 3311 234.69
314172 2,951.12
8 1542 15.42
8,224.29 750,78
13 12544 125 44
1,915.33 1,841 19
2,040.77 1,961.23
14 612 59 67335
4 254230 168990
17 9714 203 58
14 3430 31.22
3,277.08 2,598.05
14 1,550,04 1,305 55
M 123.92 10934

18
2213 .28
478 26 33280
15 141.77 133.68
16 2062 3118
7 . 315
17 56970 563 52
1,906.44 2,485.50
3,224.29 7,050.78

3

firr and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Yehicles and Seryices Limited
CIN: USeI2KL 198311,

John K }ml Francis K Paul
Monaging Divector Whale Thme Divecior
DAN; 00016513 DAN: 200158325

1

John Vergh Varun TV

Cluief L 3 Lempany Seerefary
Membership no. 22044

Kaochi
14 June 2022



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Less for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in Indian Rupess million)

Inceme

Revenue fiom operations
Other income

Tetal income

Expenses

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventoties of stock-in-Irade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
bnpatment loss on rade receivables
Other expenses

Total expenscs

Profit before tax

lncome tax expense
Currenl tax
Deferred tax charge

Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Gther comprehensive income

Fremes that witl not be reclassified subseguently 1o profit or foss
Remeasurement of nel defined benefit plan

Income tax credit/ (charge) relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit o1 loss
Other comprehensive income/{loss} for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share {2quity share of face value of IMR 10 each)

Basic {in INR)
Diluted {in INR)

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even dake attached

for BS R & Associales LLP

Charercd docounianis
Firm regfstration number: 11623 1%/ W-100024

Paviner
Membership No.: 218255

Kochi
14 June 2022

Motes

19
20

21
22
23
24
5
33
6

27
27

29

Yearended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2021

18,655 31 16,916.85
120 84 125 68
13,776.15 17,042.53
15,848 89 13,275.32
(579.30) 739.52
1,584.75 1,373 44
37461 336.59
41642 39220
. 11.04
993,60 69212
18,638.97 16,820.23
137.18 222,30
60,93 4592
6.50 17.87
67.43 63.79
69.75 158.51
5.07 (9.78)
(1.28) 142
3.79 (6.36)
73.54 15215
556 12.64
5.56 12.64

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Vebicles and Services Limited

CIN: Us0102K L 1983 PLCO

Menaging Directoy
DIN: 00016513

Juhr rehese

Chief Financial

FKochi
14 June 2022

[2¢

Francis K Faul
Whole Time Direcior
DiM: 00018825

Varan TV
Compatty Secrefary
Memberslop no. 22044



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Standalene Siatement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(&) amounts in lodian Rupees million)

A. Equity share capital

B Other cquity

Particulars Naotes Equity shares Amount|
- (in millinns)

Balance as at | April 2020 a T 12.54 125,44

Share 1ssucd during the yea 13 = =

Balance as at 31 March 2021 12.54 125.44

Share issued duting the year - =

Balance as al 31 March 2022 - o 13 12.54 125.44

l1ems of other

Reserves and surplus .
comprehensive inconve

Tatal ether equity

i attributable to equity

Farliculacs Securities General Retaincd Remeasurcnent of net holders of the
premium rEServe earmings defined benefit liability/ Company
(asset), med of Lax

Balance as af 1 April 2020 636.68 36.33 1.016.63 - 1.689.64
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the yem - - 158 51 - 158 51
Orher compiehensive loss, net of tax - - - (5.36) (636}
Toial comprehensive income - - 158.51 (6.36) 152,15
Transferved to relained eamings - - {6.36} 636 -
Balance as at 33 March 2021 636.68 36,33 1,168.78 - 1,841,7%
Total comprehensive lncome lor the year
Profit for the vear - - G975 - 6975
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 379 379
Total comprehensive income - - 69.75 379 73.54
Transfered lo tetained earmninps - - 379 (370 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 636,68 36,33 1,242,32 - 191533

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

ay Securities premium

Secunities premium is used o record the premiom received on issue of shares. 1t is wtilised in accordance wiih the provisions of the Companies Acr, 2013
b) General reserve

Geneeal reserve is used from time to time to nanster prafils from retained earnings foi appropriale purposes

¢} Retalned earnings

This represents the profits / losses of the Company eamed 1ill date, net of appropristions

d} Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Remeasmement of net defined benefit liability/ (asset} comprises achuarial gains and losses and vetum on plan assets (excluding inlerest incomel

{al o s

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the f

As per our repori of even date attached

Jor and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
CIN: USGI0ZKLI983PLOCONS 741

for BS R & Associates LLP
( '.*nrm'n!-"dt OIS
steation mimnber: L1623 1WAN-100024

é;aﬁ-

/|

Baby Paul John  Paul
Fariwer Managing Director
DIN: 00016313

Membership No: 2182335

Kachi
14 June 2022

14 June 2022

Francig K Paul
Whote Time Divector
DIN: (018525

Virun TV
Company Secrefory



Popular Vebicles and Services Limited
Standalone statement of cash Mows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in Indian Bupees million)

Cash flows from operating activitics

Profit befpre tax

Adfustments:

Finance costs

Depreciation and amoutisation expanse

Iinpaicinent loss on rade receivables

Liabilities! provisions ne longer required written back

Lnterest income

{Gain)/ loss op sale of property, plant and equipmenl {net)
Rent concession received

Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets

Net grain on financial assels measured 21 fair value through profil and loss
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Waorking capital movemenis:

{Increase) / decreaze in mventories

Decrease/ (increase) in trade recervables

{Increase) / decrease in loans and other financial assets and oller assets
Increasef{ decrease} in liabilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income 1axes {paid¥refund , nel

Met cash generated from/ {used in) operating activilies (A}

Cash flows {rom investing activities

Acquisition of investments in a subgidiary

{Acquisition) / sale of other investments, nel

Intercorporate loan {given to) repaid by wholly owned subsidiary, net
Intetest received

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment including capital advances
Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Met cash {vsed in) / generated from investing activities (B)

Cash flows frem financing activities
lnterest paid

Long-term borrowings availed

Long-tenm borrowings repaid

Short-lenn borrowings availed/ (repaid}, ner
Lease payments during the year

Met cash used in inancing activities (C)

Met (decrease) [ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended
31 March 2022

Yearended
31 March 2021

137.18 22230
37461 136 59
416 42 292 20
- 1104
(36.95) (3329)
2161y (233%)
(4.47) an
(14.77) (39.90)
(0.78) (0.20)
(0.32) (521)
849,31 862,86
(579.30) 13952
197 .82 (357.90
(215.54) 30017
9116 (802.30)
345,45 751,45
(72 32) 1308
273.13 764,83
E (125)
(3.07) 8642
14.02 410
21.61 2339
(313.04) {156.00)
(1.05) (887
12,63 6057
(268.90) 836
(161,57 {170.72)
99,51 49125
{97.24) (93.01)
171.56 (518 36)
(319.44) (269.62)
(307.18) (560.46)
(302.98) 212.43
152,95 140 52
5000 352,95

ARMAN
' KOCHI-25



Fopular Yehicles and Services Limited
Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounis in Indian Rupees million)

Reconciliation of financial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7:

Particulars As at Cash flows Mon cash changes Asat
1 Apsil 2021 Fair value changes Others 31 March 2022
Mon current borrowings {including curent maturities) 71323 227 - - TIa50
Current bortowings (Refer note 14) 1,205.67 171 .56 - - 1,377.23
Lease liabilities (refer note 34) 179924 {119 44} - 1,136 45 2,666.28
Particulars Asat Cash flows Non cash changes As at
1 April 2020 Fair value changes Others 31 March 2021
Mon current borrowings (includmyg current maturities} 286,39 486 84 7323
Current borrowings {Refer note 14} 1.812.63 (H06 96) - 1, 20567
Lease liabilities (refer note 34) 1,699.45 (269.62) - 36941 1,799 24

Cash Flow Staizment has been prepared under the indirece metbod az sel out in the Ind A3 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™

{Refer to note 10 - Cash and cash equivalenls)

J "

lone financial stat

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the st

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BS R & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
Chartored decountany Popular Veliicles and Services Limited
Firm y(mh(m nimber: 116231%W/ W-100024 CIN:D30102KL1983PLCO03T4 ]
= /
{

Baby Paul John K Paul Francis K Paul
Partner Mamaging [irector Whale Time Divector
Membership No.: 218255 DIN: 00016513 DIN: 0001 BEZ5
Koch
14 June 2022 d

Yarun T ¥

Compamy Secretary

Kochi
14 June 2022

Mentherstup no. 22034



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

1. Company overview

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (*the Company’/Popular’y was incorporated in 1983 as a
Public Limited Company and got converted into Private limited as on 24 March 2015, The Company
is engaged in the business of sale and service of automebiles, sale of spare parts and accessories,
finance and insurance commission, The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has operations
in Kerala and Tamil Nadu. The Company primarily operates as the Maruti Suzuki vehicle dealer in
Kerala and was amongst the first batch of dealers appointed by Maruti Suzuki in the country. The
Company got converted to a public limited company on 10 July 2018 consequent to which the name
of the Company is changed to Popular Vehicles and Services Limited.

The Company has six subsidiaries; Popular Mega Motors {India) Private Limited, Vision Motors
Private Limited, Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited, Kuttukaran
Green private Limited (formerly known as Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) and Popular
Auto Works Private Limited which are engaged in the business of sale and services of automobiles,
sale of spare parts and accessories, finance and insurance commission.

2.  Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance
These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, notified under Section 133
of Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act’) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 14 June 2022

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on an accrual basis,
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise
stated.

C. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability benefit obligations

Certain financial assets (including

investment) and liabilities Fair value

AS)

y
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

2.

D.

—

Basis of Preparation {continued)

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in Note 34 - Lease classification.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment for the year ended 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

Note 32 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 28 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Note 27 — recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used;

Note 33 — financial instruments.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values,

for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control

framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as

far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements {continued)

3.
31

A,

Significant accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under long-term loans and advances. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at
each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed
assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized.
Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
restdual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognised in the profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or
useful lives of assets, whichever is lower. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

7 -Companies Act 2013.

Class of assets Useful life
Building owned 60
Motor cars 8
Motor cycles and trucks 10
Office Equipment 5
Plant and machinery 15
Tools and Equipment 5
Electrical fittings 10
Furniture and fittings 10
Computer equipment 3

* The useful life of items of property, plant and equipment is in line with the Schedule 11 of the
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

3.

3.2

3.3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amertization and impairment. Intangible assets
are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in
amortization in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of assets Years

Software 3
Brand 15

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial vear
and adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Employee benefits

Shori-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia.
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
paymenis is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets, if any.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognised asset is limitedto the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (*the asset ceiling’).




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

3.
3.3

3.4

35

~%  with that contract.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plans (continued)

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCl). The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period
as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (*past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’} or the gain ot loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in profit or foss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the seftlement
of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long term employee benefits

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Investments

Non-current investments are carried at cost less any other than temporary diminution in value,
determined separately for each investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value
is done separately in respect of each category of investments.

The cost of investment includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

The acquisition cost of investments acquired, or partly acquired by the issue of shares or other
securities, is the fair value of the securities issued.

Profit or loss on sale of investments, if any, is determined separately for each investment.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date} at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for,

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract,
Before such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associgted=




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

3.

3.6
i)

3.7

3.8

i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue
Sale of products

Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognised when the risk and rewards are
transferred to the customer and is accounted net of goods and service tax and discounts, if any.
Revenues are recognised when collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

The Company generates revenue from sale of vehicles, services, spare parts and accessories and other
operating avenues. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the
goods or services.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the contract.

Rendering of services

Revenues from services including income from driving school are recognised when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

Commission, discount and incentive income

Commission income is recognised when services are rendered and in accordance with the commission
agreements.

Discounts and incentive income is recognised when the services are rendered and as per the relevant
scheme/ arrangement provided by the manufacturer, In respect of other heads of income, the Company
follows the practice of recognising income on an accrual basis.

Other Income

[n calculating the interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the assets (when the assets is not credit impaired). Dividend income is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is established.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price, cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition.
The cost is calculated on specific identification basis.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value of inventory is made on an item by item basis. Spares,
lubricants, accessories and other supplies are not written down below cost except in cases where
material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the goods will exceed their net
realisable value. Cost is ascertained based on First -in First-out (FIFO} adjusted for indirect taxes.

The provision for inventory obsolescence is assessed annually and is provided as considered
necessary.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly atiributable to its acquisition
or issue.
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3.8 Financial instrements (continued)
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ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or
fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent fo their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s tair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCT — equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVYOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FYOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies

in practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales

and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the
assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
inferest

For the purposes of this agsessiment, *principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the

financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows firom specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL [These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised/These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
cost interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or]
loss.

Equity  investments  aiThese assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
FVOCI recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial lability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost vsing the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition
is also recognized in profit or loss.

iiiy De recognition

Financial asseis

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting pelicies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in
profit or loss.

iv) Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
itintends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.9 Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit impaired, A financial asset is *credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected

credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of expected credir losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write off.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements {(continued)

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

3.9, Impairment {continued)
ii) Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

3.10 Leases

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At
inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

ii. Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-
lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
fease term at the lease commencement date, The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The tight-of-use
assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term
or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss,
if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements {(continued)

3.
3.1

Il

3.11

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Company as a lessee (continued)

The Company measures the lease liability at the present valuve of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments,
vatiable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount te reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease
liability due to modificaticn as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss
depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases te short-term leases of
all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on
a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over
the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net
investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the
head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a
head lease is a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Ifan arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allecate the consideration in the contract.

Recognition of interest income or interest expense
Intetrest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.12 Income tax

3.13

H

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum
Alternative Tax (‘MAT") under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax
in the profit or loss. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. 1t is measured
using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net
basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can berealized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized orrecognized,
arereviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the repotting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.14

3.16

317

3.8

3.19

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable
to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period
unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that
are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects oftransactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability. The existence
of a contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for disposal and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs o sell. To classify any Asset as “Asset classified as held for sale” the asset must be available for
immediate sale and its sale must be highly probable. Such assets or group of assets are presented
separately in the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets classified as held for sale™. Once classified as held
for sale, intangible assets and Property Plant Equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated.,

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23
March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
applicable from 1 April 2022, as below:

(a) Ind AS 16 - Property, plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if
any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs
considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. The Company has evaluated
the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.19 Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)

(b) Ind AS 37 - Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no material impact on its financial statements.



5z-1HOON
WY TYONYRYN ) T

IWINED
NEYNALLOA

YN AUBIWD ) 3Y) [0 SWEY 20 UL PY BUISG 10U 10 UOSERY

YN ITANPARIOWDId Jo 53 A0]dWR IO J017(PUS10WRId J0 3ATEIR) JO 101290 IS10W0Id B 51 I9p|0Y PIRp ]I YISy A

PRILLIT S331AJ3 PUE 53|33, JZINA0,) JO IWEY YL UL PPy SPEIp I L

1207 WIFW 1 1€ Sy _ TTOT MBI IE ¥ 5% uondzirssq

FAuEdwo y Y1 Jo FWEY ULl Py 10U 21113 0s,] 2|qeACWUr] 30 SPIp L (¢

9598 Tizsa £ LL | 1Lezl STuLp|ing
|| 20 0] 550,
APG PN | R0l 5504 A0 BN | Ha0|q 504D e
1Z07 YT 1€ 18 5¥ TT0Z YIEIW 1€ 9% 5%

Pu] PlOYaSES| Lo PaLLISL0D SRUIE Y 2P g

FEE85 1 2109 BEFTHL S $L6T FE9T SL'8EL 9T8E 177682 [gie 906 $5°955 19111 L6186 1207 U LEIY
ae0Lt) £0001 STeRsL e T 1512 NI &10F £ €08 BE0E 16 £H60L LEERT L6146 TIGT WEN LE0Y
UNCWE FULLLIED 1IN

£TL0L = ETL0L BI'L T6°LE 1EF 2='1F TE'6F 16051 6565 [y LEFST FIBL * LT0T [IE 1€ 18 duk]eg
13 %6 = (k34 {3 ML 1301 LS P It 60T 20 [31) LED = = oA ¢ sjesedag
0% T8l £ 0981 POl PSE el 95T oL 1T5€ 2] 6kl L¥SE PO ] read 3y sof vareRdeg
129 = 19 STE FEIE LR ] S 8L 1 EE 6l 6Ll fFiv iF v 13 841 g - 1202 1ady | 1e 2dueeg
FF1z9 = 19 Eray FE'IE F9€9 SFES EI'EY GL6E1 £V LiF iFsF IBE61 [ IF4li 4 = TZ0T YMepy 1§ 1% 3duejeqg
i GE - £L9¢ Ciro . lo'n fyards = ank FARI] oo 1t £ - HO a5 esodsig
QLTLL - SLTLI Il LH & el CEUE L THTE ET] L8l kT G6f e - aea4 sy 10y uoneadag
LE'SEF - 14444 s F{{T Fs'Fr aEGe LESE £6°ES 0T'5E SLTE 6091 ¢1TL - GInT (Mdy [ 1e 2ouzeqg

woepRida paIvnWng Yy

Ls'E1F'T 00071 EFEGT'T 0L 109 858 LS EFH FIFSt LE6EL L0851 FI 96 1%°1£1 L6 LEOT Yty L e 2oy
LT 66 0L 06T L6 P FIT 15 UL BL2F %o Lin SE0 100 B0y = ] O Al 5|Es0dsIg)
03 109 L1 GFT 9 75E 0F & ol 1671 v LR 3ErS LA 9552 S0 60 = 3 OMppY
86 D0T'T a4l (9] T8 EP0'T ¥ 6 Zls% o 68 0 Lél CEIL 00 £0F PLEIL 8152 LiSEL 18°2€] it e 120T WAy | 18 30ueeg
86°90%'T G119 TSR0 6 Thss 668 DT°L61 FE1L E0F FS1T 16T LLSEL 18°1£1 L6°L6 1707 YMER |1 1F #dukjeg
£1182 L1181 oaal L s Bkl g o 6l T o Gl 5.4 WL r el o #liw g sesodsig
[a.g 2 0x 0o & FET £ e G 1 LE W7 14y g or el 3El St LOL - - Suahippy
HEERLT Lo T Sk [1871 i0l Or 0% il 8 LET PP o &6 P9E S000| &l Lol 90 L9 LOFEL HL L 0707 |1dy | 16 pouEleg

FNJEA TULLIIEY 53000

g+¥) {q) ssaaJoud-n) i¥) SHIMLI) pUE Juzwdinba i dinbs dink A dinb S3ANLXY spuawasoddu)

eI Hrosm [endey [LLTN saAy 100 LTI Rndwony TE3 030 [y puk m_.wo._. pu pugpg —3_..-9.05 pue Janpeany PIOYaTEI] #SBulppRg  puE] ployRaag S I8 NIILRE]

ssaadosd-m-aom el e pue puwdinbs pur juepd ‘daedoay §

(UoljIu Sadnyg Upu| W SILAOWE ||y}
P A ) A HEYS I L} JEPUEIS d1y) a1 SabiN]
P 901G pue S3Piyas acndeyg




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes (o the standalone financial statements {continued)
{All amaunts in Indian rupees million)

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress {continued)

b} Ageing of capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress 1epresents expendituie toswards construction of new workshops! service centres

As at 31 March 2022

Awount in CWIP for a period of

Descripdion Less than 1 Mare Than 3

Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years
Prajects in piogress 119.831 022 - -
Protects temporanily suspended - - -
As at 31 March 2021

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Description Less than | More Than 3

Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years
Projects in progress 4535 7968 19.64 16.49
Proiects temporarily suspended - -
) Details of capital work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded ifs cast compared to its orginal plan
As at 31 March 2022

To be completed in

Description Less than | More Than 3

Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total
Priviect - Trivandram Commercial Yehicles Showroom 167 - - 2 .67
As at 31 March 2021

Tao be completed in

Deseriplion Less thao 1 Maore Than 3

Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Tatal
Praject - Corporate Office rencvation 350 * - - 350
Praject — Payyaung PDT 1849 - - - 18 49
Project Arena Kannur 44.33 - - - 44 33
Project Inity Service 0.55 - - - 055
Prgject Ned padu Service 331 - - - 33
d) There are no pu dings initiated or pending apainst the Company for holding any benami propesty under the Benami Transaclions {Probibitions} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the

rules made therzunder, fo: years ended 3) March 2022 and 3) dMaich 2021

€] For details of property, plant and equipment pledped, refer note 14.
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Popular Yehicles and Services Limited
Motes to the standalone financial statements {continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

5 Intangible assets

Computer

Particulars Beand Total
soltware

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 April 2020 28.96 49.47 78.43

Additions 887 - 887

Balance at 31 March 2021 37.83 49.47 87.30

Balance at | April 2021 37.83 4947 87.30

Additions 1.05 - 105

Balance at 31 March 2022 38,88 49047 88.35

Accumulated amorlisation

Balance at 1 April 2020 11.65 12.84 24.49

Amaontisation for the year 985 3.16 13.01

Balance at 31 March 2021 21.50 16.00 37.50

Balance at 1 April 202] 21.50 16.00 37.50

Amortisation for the year 741 316 1057

Balanece at 31 March 2022 28.91 192.16 48.07

MNet carrying amount

At 31 March 2022 9,97 30N 40.28

At 31 March 2021 16,33 33.47 49,80




Popular Yehicles and Services Limited
Notes (0 (he standalone financial siatements (conlinved)
411 ameunts in Indian Rupees million)

6

As at Asa
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Investments
Nog-current investmonis, nnguoted

Fuvesterents i egrity fstraments of sabsidiarics (if cont fexs provision for
ather than femporary impairaent), filly poid-up

Investment in subsidiaries

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limiled 4995 4095
51,034 {11 March 2021: 51,034 ) equity shares of fave value of INR 100 each

Popular Mega Molors (India) Private Limited 309 57 300 57
6,943,963 (31 March 2021 6,943,%63) equily shares of face value of INR 10 each

Popular Autoworks Private Limniled 24723 24723
E110,780{31 March 2021: 25111 780 } equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Kultukaran Cars Privale Limited (formerly known as Prabal Motors Private Limated) 15 50 1550
2,000,000 (31 March 2021 2,000,000 ) equily shares of face value of INR 10 each

Less: Provision for diminution i value (15 50) {15 50)

Sivesimenrs in proference shares 4t FVTPL
Prabal Motors Private Linited (formerly known as Popular Kultukaran Cars Private Limited) 020 020
20,000 {31 March 2021 : 20,000 ) preference shares of face value of IMR. 10 each

lavesimenl in others at FYTPL

(Meirtedt

Muthoot Finance Limiled 063 057
465 (31 March 2021 : 469 ) equily shares of face value of INR 10 2ach

Invesivent in mutwal funds st FYTPL

Linguoed

Aditya Birla Sunlife Equity Fund - Regular Growih - 192
Mil (31 March 2021: 4,181 58)

HOFC Small Cap Fund - Regular Growth - 420
Wil (31 March 2021- 79567 949)

Kotak Emerging Equily Scheme Fund - Regular Growth - 444
Ml (31 March 2021, 77226 847)

Total investments 607,58 620.08
Aggregale value of non-current invesimenis-unquated 606 95 619 51
Agyregate book/ market value of non-cument imvesiments-quoted 063 057
Aguregate provizion for imparment i value of invesiment {15 500 (15 50)

Curvent investnenty
Iwvesiment in debentures at FVTPL

! tin deb d a1 fair value through profil or loss 15 89 -
15.8% -
Apgregate value of current invesiments-unguoted 15.89% -
Other assels
Non-currend
Linsectred, convidered good
Capital advances 18 86 498
Less: Allowances for sxpected credil loss “18) -
Prepaymenis 233 5531
Balance with statutory / povernment authorities © 2218 2208
119.1% 78.37
Current
Uineeenred, considered good
Prepaymenis ¥ 1369 16 05
Advance 1o staff 055 ald
Balance with statutory / povernment aulhorities 21825 156.30
Balance with Life [nsurance Corporalion Graluily Fund, nel (refer note 32) - 1162
Payment 1o vendors for supply of goods and services 4525 5058
A37.74 13H.6%
- 456.93 313.06
* Represenls amounts paid under prolesl against various lax cases and proceedings
# Prepaymentls include the expenditure incurred by the Company amounting to Rz 52 30 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 towards the propozed minal public offer which has been classified
under "other curreni assels” m the fi 1al The Company expeels to récover cerlam from the shargholders and the balance amount would be charged-off 10 securilies premium

account in aecordance with Section 52 of the Cnr'npanies Act, 2013 upon the shares being issued

The Company has not given any loan to their direciors during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

CENTRE

MAMANGALAM
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Papular ¥ehicles and Services Limiled
Motes 1o the standalone Nnamcial statenents (continwed)
(Al amouts m Indian Rupces million)
Asal Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

& luventaries
(Verfiresd o femier oof cost caned veerlinadrle vodire)

New vehicles 1,335 27 33552
Pre-owned vehicles 30204 33303
Spares and Jubricans 180 94 157 66
Accessones 1139 68 67
242221 1.444.88

Less: Provision for obsolete mventory {1757} (1954}
1004.64 1.415.34

Closing slock includes value of ponds m iransit of pew velicles for Bs 645 16 million (31 March 2021 Rs 504 44 mallion), accessories for [R5 27 78 mallion (31 March 2021:Rs |8 86 million}

¥ Trade receivables

Currenl
Unvecural
Considered good 66115 258 97
Cansidered doubiful 2016 26 96
681,31 685,93
Allowances for expecied credit loss (refer note 33 B(ii)) (2016) (26 95)
Ned irade receivables 64115 858.97
Of the abave, trade receivables from relaled parties are as below:
Tuolal irade receivables from related parties 233 1063
Nei {rade receivables 2,35 10.45
For details of (rade receivables from related parties, refer note 36
The Conipany's exposure lo credit and currency risks and loss allowances relaled 1o rade receivables are disclosed in note 33
Trade receivables apeing schedule
As ad 31 March 2022
Less than 6 6 ths - More than 3
Particulars ) il m"_ months 1-1 years  2-3 vears ore fhan Totml
Not Due L yenr yeurs
NUndigpored Trade receivalies — vonsidered good I5BR 62578 a4 805 . = 66115
indispied Trade Recoivables = which have significam mereaze in coedit nisk . - - . - - -
niUndisputed Trxde Receivables — gradil impaned - 1155 210 651 - = 20 16
18.88 637.33 10,54 14.56 - - 681.31
As sl 31 March 2021
Particulars Less than 6 6 months- IZyears 23 yeavs More than 3 Total
Mot due months L year years
lindispined Trade receivables — considered wood 19 61 238 16 120 - - - g53 97
iUindizpuled Trade Recervaliles = which have significans increase in credn rigk - - - - - - -
iU nduputed Trade Recerables — credit impaired - 353 402 1351 - - 26 96
19,61 846.6% 6.12 13.51 - - §85.93
The Company’s £xposure lo credil and currency nisks and loss allowances related to Irade receivables are disclosed i nole 33
10 Cash and cash equivalenis
Balance with banks
Balances with banks in current accounls KER 34335
Cash on hand 678 671
Cheques on hand 411 4 536
Cash and cash equivalents in balaace sheet 50.00 354.62
Book overdrafls used for cash management purposes - 167
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 50,00 352,95
11 Bank balances other tlsan cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks held as margin money ] 34 2282
1.84 22.51
12 Oiher financial assets
Non-curremd
Limvectred, cinidered goaod
Dues from related parties (refer nole 36) 02 6708
Rent and other deposits 17226 158 73
Balance with bank held as margin money 26 51 -
244,79 12581
Currenl
Unsecnred, vonsidered good
Reni gnd olher deposils 58 60 45 8&
Dues froms related parties (refer nole 36) 11 36 BE2
Dues from others 500 500
Lexs Allowances (or expecied credil lnss {5.00) {5.00)
Thdi 54,68
310.25 180.49
- 4“\'
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Popular Vehicles and Sevvices Limited
MNotes to the dal fi ial stat i d)
{All amounts and number of shares in Indian rupees million)

As at 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021

13 Equity share capital Nuwmber of shares Amount Mumber of shaves Amount
Autherised
Equity shares of INR. [( each 1500 150.00 1500 15000

) 1500 150.00 15.00 150,00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up >
fiqueity shares of INK 10 each fiully paid-np
At the begimning of the year 12.54 12544 12.54 12544
Add: Additions during the year ' - . = -
At the end of the year 12.54 125.44 12.54 125,44

{a} Terms and rights attached fo cquity shares
The Company has a single ¢lass of equity shares. All the equity shares rank equally with cegard (o dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are
entitled ro receive dividend as declared fiom time 10 time The voting vights of an equity shareholdzc on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proporion to share of paid-up equity
capital of the Company. Voling nights cannot be exercised in respect of shares an which any call or other sums presently payable have nor been paid. Farlure to pay any amount
called up on the shares may lead 1o the forfeiture of shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the
Company, remaining after the distriburion of all prefereniial amounts in proportion 1o the numnber of equity shares held

The Company 1s largely held by individuals and accordingly does not have a holding ultimate holding company.

(b} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% sharcs of the Company
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Fauiny shaves of INE 10 zach fully paid up held by Number of shares % holding Mumber of shares % holding
in the class in the class
a) BanyanTree Growth Capital II, LLC 427 34.01% 127 34.01%
b Francis K Paul - Promoter 175 21.93% 215 21.93%
¢} John K Paul - Promoter 275 21 93% 275 21.93%
d) Naveen Philip - Promoter 275 21.93% 275 21.93%
{c) Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021
Name of (he promoters Number of shares % holding Number of shares %o holding
in the elass in the class
a) Francis K Paul - Promoler 275 21.93% 275 2193%
b} John K Paui - Promoter 2,75 2193% 275 21.93%
<) Naveen Philip - Promoter 275 21.9%% 275 21.93%
{d) Details of bonus shares izsued ducing the five vears immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, 8.62 million equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up, has been allotted as bonns shares by capilalisation of geneial resecve
{¢) Details of buyback and shares issued lor consideration other than for cash in the five years inmmediately preceding the balance sheet date.

The Company has not bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration other than for cash during the period of five yeats immediate preceding
the balance sheet date
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Naotes Lo the
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

dal.

Popular Yehicles and Senvices Limited

lmancial

over immovable propertes of the Company

As ol Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
14 Bovrowings
MNau-current
Secuted
Term loans from banks 406 52 665 93
Vehicle loans from financial instiutions 611 742
02.69 673,35
Cuwrrend
Seenred
Shoet term Joan {rom banks 1,323 40 1,175 56
Current maturities of long-t4rm borrowings 172 81 99 38
Hwenred
Short term loans rom banks 15 40 -
Slvort term loans from financial instilulions I8 4] Ela )|
1,550.04 1. 305,55
Total borrowings 115273 1.978.90
Information about the Company's expoesure (o interest rate and liquidity risks are included in note 33
aY Detadls of securitles, terms and conditions of borrowings from banks snd Rinancial instilutions
N As at As al
Leaders aame Sceourity terms MNature of Torrowings Tenure 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Yes Bank Limited Secured by personal guarantees of John K. Paud|Short tenm loan (rom banks - Secured 60 days 1170
ard Francis K. Paul, directors ol the Company and
lien on the vehicle booked
Axis Bank Limiled Secured by personal guarantees John K Paul and| Short term loan rom banks - Secured 60 days 346 02 437 32
Francis K Paul, direciors of 1he Company
Indusind Bank Limited Secured by personal wuaraniees af John K Pawd|Short term loan from banks - Unsecured 60 Days - 17003
and Francis K Paul, directors of 1he Company
ICIC] Bank Limited Secured by exclusive charge on the stock and|Shor term loan rom banks - Secured 60 Days 7275 s1er
receivables, equilable mortgage on residential
property and personal yuaraniees of John K Pau!
and Francis K Paul, diveciors of 1he Company
Kotak Malindra Prime Limited p d by hyp jon of vehicles purc Short term loan from (inancial institutions - 60 days 1540 -
using the fund and personal guaramees of John K| Unsecured
Paul and Francis K Paul, directors of the
Company
ICICT Bank Limited Secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased| Vehicke loan - Secured 36 months - 24 2035 350
using the fund and personal guaraniees of John K Manths
Pawl and Francis K Paul, directors of the
Company
Axic Bank Limited Secured by personal guarantees John K Paul and|Long term loan from banks - Secured 60 months 8705 &8 90
Francis K Paul, directors of the Company
Federal bank Lamited Secured by 2nd charge on equitable mortgape|Long rerm loan from banks - Secured 6 months w15 116306
over immovable properties of the Company
1CIC) Bank Limited Secured by 2nd charge on eqoilable mortgape| Long term loan from banks - Secured 66 months m 3T
over immovable properties of the Company and
Secured by personal guarantees John K Paul and
Francis K Faul, direciors of the Company
Indusind Bank Limiled Secured by personal guarantees of John K Paul|Long rerm loan from banks - Secured 66 months 2045 2045
and Francis K Paul, directors of the Company.
Yes Bank Limiled Secured by personal guarantees of John K Paul{Long term loan lrom banks - Secured G0 months 304y
and Francis K. Paul, directors ol the Company.
State Bank of India Secured by 2od charge on equitable mongaye|Long term lpan from banks - Secured &t months 11900 1190
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Popular Vehicles and Services Linited
Mates 1o the dalune financial si (continued)
(Al amouwms n Indian Rupees million}

14 Borrowings (continned)

Lenders name Security (enms Natwre of borvowings

Tenure

Asal
30 Mareh 2022

Asal
31 Mavel 2024

Sundaram Finance Limiled Secured by hypothecalion of vehicles purchased|Vehicls loan -Secured
using the fnd and personal guaranlees of John K
Paul and Francis K Paul, directors ol the
Company

36 months - 24
Maonihs

R ¥

PR TS

Sundaram Finance Limited Secured by personal guaraniees of John K Paul|Shor tenm loan from financial institutions -
and Franciz 1 Paul, direclors of the Company Unsecured

30 days

V797 |

2040

Indusind Bank Limited Secured by personal yoaramees aof John K Paul|Shor tenm loan from banks - Secured
and Franciz K Paul, directors of the Company

30 days

ZIEN

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial |Secured by personal guaramiees of John K Paul|Shon term loan from financial instilutions -
Services Limited and Francis K Paul, directors of the Company Insecured

45 days

ha ]

137

Cholamandalam (nvestment and — |Secured by personal guarantzes of John K Pavl|Shon term loan from financial instintions -
Finance Comnpany Limited and Franciz K Paul, dircclors of the Company Unsecured

45 days

1535

%33

Federal bank Limited Secured by eyuilable mongage of showroom| Term loan from banks - Secured
building and movable ixed asseds of the company
cther [han those covered by teim loan from SEI
and KMPL current assets of the company and
personal puarantees of John K Paul, Francis K
Paul and Maveen Philip, directors of 1he
Company

Faderal bank Limited Securedby advances,receivables and stock of new|Short 1erm loan from banks -Secwred
vehicles of the company and p |

of John K. Paul, Francis K Paul and MNaveen
Philip, dwectors of the Company

B4 months

C 60days

2492712

161 48

TH18

%35

Siate Bank of [ndia Equitable mortgaee  of showroom  building|Short tzrm loan from banks - Secured
|belongine 1o directors and personal puarantee of]
John K Paul and Francis K Paul, dicectors of the
Company

4% Days

477 63

32199

Federal bank Limited Secured by hypothecaiion of stocks of used cars, | Short term Joan from banks - Secured
accessonies and spares and receivables.

NA

104 OO

HLAC Bank Linited Secured by hypothecation of siocks and book|Short derm loan rom banks - Secured
debls under panppassu agresment

45 Days

Slate Bank of India Secured by first chare on assets created out of|Long (erm loan fiom banks - Secured
thes  facibty  and  second  charze  on
i ry.receivables and ad

60 months

Borrowings from banks £ financial institwiions carry interest rates from B% to 10% per annum

LI5273

1,978 00

b} Tle Company has availed working capilal facilities from banks on the basis of securily of current assels and have submilted quarterly returns of current gszeds and current liabilities 1o the bankers. Following

is the summary of 1econciliations and reasons for differences between such returns and hook of accounts

Amount as repericd in
Cuarier ended Mame of bank Pacticulars Amounl nx per the quarterlypmum.f Amouni of Silference Whether seta n-f:ﬂ:l'mlmt
books of account subscquenily reetified
slatenent
30 Junc 2021 Federal Bank. lwyenton 162k 3 (4000 {417 5thy
3 Sepiember 2021 Federal Baik s enton 14497 14 (RO, {195 76} Ne
31 Docember 202 | Federal Bank Wiy enton 14457 6 [RELIC] 152 36)
31 March 2022 Federal Bank Tventor: 202221 AL {307 Ty
30 Junc 2021 Federal Bk CHler curmenl habili 23421 2020 3220
301 Scptember 2021 Federal Bank Clher currenl Irabili (Wil 54 RELNE] 129 %1 No
11 Cecember 2021 Federal Bank ) Oiler current iabilit #0287 d14 () 452 &7
31 bdarch 2022 Federal Bank. CHher current liabitilk W32 (K P {1704}

The Company has been sanctioned working capilal #imils from banksffinancial instilulion on Ihe basis of security of current assels which consisls of inventory. The value declared 1o the banks 15 inclusive off
GST paid on il as banks/Tinancial mstitulion funding i1s inclusive of GST However, the value considered in the financial statement is exclusive of GST and since such GST portion was not considered as part of

COSE Lnventory

As per Ihe condilion upon which banks/financial inslitulions have funded the working capital requirenients, the Company is also required (0 prowde details of its trade payable and olher current liabililies on a
periodic basis. As the working capital suppon is for meeting the day wday operalional requirements, (he Camnpany did not consider Irade payable and other current liabilities partaining (o its corporata office

Fncti

current habilies peraining (o ils corporate office funclions

)} The Company has utilised the loans availed for the purpose it was availed

15 CHher financial liabilities
Current
Interest accrued but nod due on boreowinus

Accrued salarics and benefits
Dues to cieditors for capilal yoods

Bk overdialt

The Company’s cxposm ¢ 1 cirendy and bguidny sk relared o the above fisancial liabilties is disclosed i mole 33

while providing periodic 1w banks/(i ial mstitutions However, the trade payable and other current liabililies disclosed in the financial statement is inclusive of irade payables and oiher

076 013
12227 12530
I8 74 658
a 167
141.77 133.68
L 1
Y \
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Popular Vehickes and Sevvices Limited
Maotes 12 the siandal: Tinamcial {cono }
(All amoumts in Indian Rupees miliion)

As at Asal
31 Maich 2022 3 March 2021
15 Provisions
Now-current
Proviston for employee benefin

Met detined henelit liabiliy - Gratuity * 1179 ;
3160 3122

Compensated absences
34.89 31,22
Currenl T )
Provistoe for ripleree bemefiss
Compensated absences i 2062 IR
.62 EIWE
- 5551 62.40
* Also refer note 52 o o
17 Other liabilities
Mou-current
Advance rom vendors for rebales o7 14 03 58
9114 203.58
Qiber liabilities
Carvent
Contract liabilities 451 67 453 M
Advance from vendors for rebales 409 67 31
Siatutory dues payables 43 34 42 27
' 569.70 563.51
666.34 6710
Movement in contract liabilities
Opening balance at the beginning of Lhe year 453 74 39212
Less : Revenue recognised during the year (433 74} (39212
Add Additions te advances lrom customers during the year 451.67 453 74
Closing balance at the end of the year 451,67 45374

The coniract liabilities primarily relate 1o the advance consideralion received from the customers for the purchase of vehicles This will be recognised a5 revenue as and when the Company meel Ihe
performance obligatien by delivering the velicles Refer Note 16 for more details

18 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small emerprises 2213 028
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 478 26 133 80
500,39 339.08

Trade payable ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022

DOuistanding for folowing periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than More (ham Talal
1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years 3 years

IMSME 2213 - - - 2213

Others 41723 £1.03 - - 478 26

iinDisputed Dues-MSME v . -

w)Disputed Dues-Others . = =

¥)Unbilled dues ) E . s
439,36 61,03 = = 500,39

As at 31 March 2021

Ouistanding for following periods lrom dwme dale of payment

Particwlars Less than More thao Tonl
1 year 1-2 years 3-3 years 3 years

iIMSME 02 - - - 028

iiOhers 3103 067 - - 338 80

iiiyDisputed Dues-MSME 3 » -
w)Disputed Dues-Others . = —

viUnbilled dues - - - -
Al 0,67 - - 339,08
Al irade payables are ‘current”
The Company’s exposure 1o curréncy and hquidity risks related 1o trade payables is disclosed in nole 33
Disclosures as required under the Micre, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development Acd, 2006 {"the Act™) based om the inf ilalbe with the Comp are given helows
2213 {28

The principal amouni lemallllng unpmd lo any supplier a5 al the end of (he year
The inlerest due on Lhe princip ling as a1 the end of the year
The amount of inleresi pald under the Acl along with the amounis of the payment made beyond the appointed . -
day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid bl

beyond the appoinied day during the year} bul without addmg the interesi specified under Ihe Act

The awwuit of interest accreed and remaining unpaid al the end of the year

The amount of further interest renaining doe and payable even in Lhe succeeding years, untl such date when the

inleresl dues as above are actually pai to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expendilure under the Act

* Amounl is below the round off norms adopied by the Company




Popular Vehlcles and Services Limiled
Moles to the dalone al siat ts (comtinued)
(Al mnounts in Indian Rupees million}

20

2

22

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenuc from operations
Sale of products
Sales of new vehicles including labour income 12,073 5% 11,257 56
Sale ol spare parts and accessories 1,867.78 1,560.44
Sale of mic-owned vehicles 2,33041 212020
1627178 14.938.26
Sale of services 1,584.55 1,236.23
1785633 1617449
Other operating revenues
Income fiom schemes and ncentives 39289 33861
Finance and insusance conmnizsion 38805 390 61
Income fiom driving school 13.04 13 14
18,655.31 16,%16.85
Reconciliation of vevenue from sale of products and services
Gross revenue 17,366.36 16,681 16
Less: Discoumt allowed 489 97 50067
17.856.33 16,174.49

(A} Disseggregate of revenue information
The table below presents disaggregated revenues fiom conhacts with customers for the below years ended by offerings and coniract type. The Company believe that this disaggrepalion
best depicis how the natare, amounl, (iming and uncentainity of our revenues and cashflows are effected by industry, market and other economic factors

Particutars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Revenue by contract type
Fixed price 18,65531 18,655.31
18,655.31 18,655.31

(B} Contract balances
The following table provides information about tade receivables and conbact Habilities from contiact with customers

Year ended Year ended
Paniculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tiade 1eceivables 66115 85897
Connact liabilires 451.67 453714
(C) Tr tion price allocated to remaining performance obligations
The following lable includes revenue expected 10 be recognised in the Tutwe 1elated 10 performance oblipations that are isfied (or partially satisfied) at the reporting date
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Wilhin | year 45467 45374
More than 3 years - -
Closing balance 450,67 4534
Other income
Interest income based on effective interest vate
Fixed deposils with banks 260 252
Rent deposits 12.59 526
Interest on income-tax refund - 707
Loan to relaled parties {tefer note 36) 642 764
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 447 -
Liabilities po Jonger required wiitten back 3605 3329
Renl concession 1eceived 1477 39.90
Gain on disposal of ight-of-use assels 078 020
Fmancial assels at FYTPL - net change in Fair value 032 521
(ther non-operating imcome 41.94 2369
120.84 115.68
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Mew vehicles 12,022.78 10,033,92
Pre-owned vehicles 2,208.26 202276
Spares, lubricants and accessones 1,617.85 1,218.64
15,54%.89 13,275.32
Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Crpening inventoty 1,425.34 2,164 86
Closing inventory 2,004 64 1,425.34

(579.30) 739.52




Popular ¥ehicles and Services Limited
Motes 10 ibe standalone fi fal siat (continuwed)
(A&l amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

23 Employee benefils expense
Salavies and allowances 1,413 59 1,215.53
Conlyibution to provident and ather fund (refec nole 32} 06 99 96,00
Staff welfare expense 6917 al 25
158475 137344

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {*Code ) telating o employee benelits during emplovoent and post employment benefits recerved Pezsidential assent in September 2020, The Cade
has been published in the Gazette of India. Howeves, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final sulesfinterpietation have not yet been issued
The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary
assessiment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be sipnificant

4 Finance costs
Interest on bank bonowings 146 44 13584
Imerest on lease Liabilities {refer note 34) 212,41 17202
Other bortowing costs 15.76 2873
374.61 336.59
25 Depreciation and amartisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment 182.60 1727
Amnortisation on intangible assels 1057 13.01
Depreciation on night-of-use asset (1efer nole 34) 22325 2643
q1642 39220
26 Other expenses
Rent $3.76 3508
Advertising and sales pi i 103.71 8792
Consumables 198,44 111,60
Repaics and maintenance:
Plant and machinery 633 5.00
Building 2517 2253
Others 67.44 5229
Power, water and fuel 80,35 64.62
Tiavelling and conveyance 53.80 4519
Housekeeping and security and other coniact charges 118.27 39.94
Office expenses 40,06 2548
Communication 34.82 3641
Refurbishment chacpes on pre-owned vehicles 40,90 35.09
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipinent {net) - L2
Pre-delivery inspection chaiges 1810 1523
Rates and taxes 270 12.01
Transportation chages 16,54 1637
Bank charges 4.7 15.56
Insuance 3022 2768
Manag fee on pr d vehicl 12,86 0493
Legal and professional 12,60 822
Commission 411 3.56
Donation and charity al3 015
Expenditure on corpoale social 1esponsibility (CSR') {refer note (i) below) 1.70 202
Miscellancous expenses 19 88 14.02
993.60 692.42
Details of Corporate social responsibitity expenditure
{iy  Gross amount required 1o be spent during Ihe year 170 2.02
i) Amount approved by the Board lo be spent during the year 170 2.02
{iiip  Amoum spent during the year on ;
Construction/ acquisition of asset - -
On purposes olher than above 170 202
Unspent amount in celation to:
Onpoing project - -
Other than onpoiny, project - )
{iv)  {Shortfall) / Excess at the end of the yem - 3

v} Total of previous years shortfall - -
(vi) Details of related party transactions L .
Whete a provision is made with respect to a Hability incurred by ing into # ¢o | obligation, the m in the provision - -
during the periodfyear should be shown separately
{vii) Reason for shortfall
For the year ending 31 March 2022 and 31 Macch 2021 NA No&
fixy Mature of TSR activities;
a) Payment ko Prine minister national relief fund - -
b} Skill devel opment 170 202
¢ Education - -
d) Runal development = -

{vii}

Dretails of ongoing project and other than ongoing project
—; Opening balance Amount Spend during the vear Closing balance
2 5SSO0 Particulars P In separate CSR | Amount required | From Company's | From separate CSR . In separate CSR
/Y i‘\ C;'Qﬂ with Company unspent Afc to be spent bank Afe unspent Ate With Company - “‘Bf T
f W% A1 March 2022 - - 170 170 - 1 TR T N
| Kofp; Phesi Mach 202 : . 202 202 : 7 %

\i >
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the standalone finangial statements (continued)
{AIl ameunts in Indian Rupees millon)

28
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contingent liabilitics
(leamms agetnst the Conpany nof ackinontedged ax dehfs

Service tax related matters 1375 11.55
KVAT related mallers 9324 G548
Income tax related matters 1987 4390
Employees' state insuranceprovident fund demand 7.95 7.95
Cuzlomet claims 8667 115
Commitments

Comorate puarantees 76354 52000
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal accound (nel of advances) and not

provided for 9340 158.00

Details of claims against the Company

a) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, il is not practicable for the Company (o estimate the timing of cash flows, it any, in respect of the above as it is
delerminable only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending with various forums! authorties. The Company has received all its pending livigations and proceedings and has
adequately provided for when provision is required and disclosed as contigent liabilities where applicable, in the financial information. The Company doses not expect the
outcome of these proceedings to have a matevially adverse effect on ils financial position

b) There are cerain claims raised by various customers, pending before varions consumer fornns. The management does nol expect the outcome of the aclion lo have a
material effect on its financial position

¢y On 28 February 2019, the Hon'ble Supreme Cowrt of Tndia has delivered a judpment clanifying the principles that need to be applied in detcrmining, the companents of
salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need 1o be made by establishmenrs. Basis this jodgpment, the Company has re-computed its hability towards
PF for the month of March 2019. In respect of the earlier penods/years, the Company has been legally advised that there are namerous interpretative challenges on the
application of the judgment relrospectively. Based on such legal advice, (he managenient believes that il is impracticable a1 this slage to reliably measure the provision
required, if any, and accordingly, no provision has been made towards the same. Mecessary adjustments, if any, will be made io the books as more clarity emerges on this
subyest

Earnings per share

A. Basic carmings per share

The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average munber of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic eamings per share
calculations are as follows:

i) Met profit attributable to equity share holders

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Net profit for the year, atuiburable to the eguity shave holders (&) 6975 138 51

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic and diluted)

|Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year (refer note 13) 12,54 12.54
Weighted average number of shares issued during ihe year {right issue) - -
Weighted average monber of shares issued during 1he year {bonus issue) - .
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding during the year (C) 1254 12 54
Earnings per share, basic and diluted {A/C) 5.56 12.64

B. Diluted carnings per share
There ate no potential dilulive equily shares as at balance sheet dates

Auditors® remuneration {nel of poods and service tax)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 20214
Sialutory audit 230 230
Oiher services
- Expense in relation o imitiat public offering 10.68 -
- Centificalions 0.24 024

13.22 2,54




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Netes to the st financial nts {contlinued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

3F  Scgment reparting
The Company bas a single reponable businezss segment which 1s reviewed by Chief operating decision maker ('CODMT. The Company is enpaged in the business of purchase
and sale of vehicles and related secvices. The entire operations are organised and managed as one organisational unil with 1he same set of risks and retums, hence the same
Tias been considered as representing a single primary segment. The Company venders its services m India only and does nol have any operalions in economic environmenis
with different nsks and retums; hence it is considered operating in a single geographic seginent. The Company has no simificant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10%
of the revenue fioin operations; hence no separate disclosure i made on e same

Accordingly, no sepment disclosure has been made in these financial stalemenls

31 Employee henefits

A Defined coniribution plan
The Company makes conhibutions, detenmined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and other funds
which are defined conttibution plans. The Company has no ablipations other than to make 1he specified conttibutions. The contributions are charped to the statement of profit
and loss as (hey accnye

B Defined benefit plan

The Company operates centain post-employment defined benefit plan which is provided for based on acivarial valuation carmed ont by an independent acluary using the
projected wnit credic method. The Company acoraes grairy as per the provisious of the Paymend of Gratiey Act, 1972 (" Gratwiey Actl

The Gratuity Man entitles an emploves, who baz rendered atleast five years of comlinuons service, W jecgive aoe-half monilv's salay for each vea of compleied service
{service of s1x months or above is rounded off to one year) at the ume of retivement? exit, vesincted to a sum of INR 200 million

Based on an acluarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets ol the status of the benefil plan and the anounts recognised in the Company™s standalone
financial stalements as al balance sheel date.

Reconciliation of the projected defined benefir obligation

Particulars Asat Asgat

31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Defined benefit liabilicy 1811 16968
Plan assets 18042 181,30
Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 329 {11.62)
Liability For compensated abzences 5222 62.40
Total employee benefit liability 55.51 50.78
MNon-curvent defined benefir Habiliry 34,89 19.60
Cunient defined benefit liability 2062 3118

€ Reconciliation of net defined benefit {assets) liabiliry
i Reconcifaiion of present volues of defined benefic obligasion
The following table shows a reconciliation from Ihe opening balances to ihe closing balances for net defined benfit (assel ) liability and its components

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 169,63 143.006
Current setvice cos| 2247 1723
Past service Cost =
TInterest ¢osl 10.33 8.60
Benefils paid {13.70) (210)

Re-moasurementy

Actuanal painf(loss} recognised in other eomprehensive income

- changes in demographic assungplicns -
Actuarial gam/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

- chanpes in financial assumptions (1.40) 13.34
- changes in experience over the past penod 233 (3.95)
Defined benefit obligation as af the end of the year 18371 16%.68

i) Recomoitiation of present verlie af plan avsess

Particulurs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mavch 2021
Plan asscts at the beginning of the year 181.30 164,62
Contributions paid into the plan 113 1471
Benefits paid (1370 {2.10)
lerest income 11.69 10946
Re-mvasurements
Returm on plan assels excluding amount incladed in net inlerest on the ner defined liability/{asset) - AR
Balance at the end of the year 180.42 181.30
Net defined benefit liabifity/ (asset) 3,29 (11.62)
0 Ex| recognised i e standal ot of profit and loss
(i) Expenses recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Currenl service cosk 2247 1123
Past service cosl - .
Net inerest on net delimed linhility (1.36) (2.36)
MNef gratuity cost 21.11 1:4.87
//h\:;—s AMO f/ \‘\
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Popular Velicles and Services Limited

MNotes to the standalone lmancial statemenis {contimucd}
(AT amounts in Indian Rupees million}
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Empleyce benefits {continued)
W) Reconerlieston of prosei vatue of plon assets

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Pian asscls at the beginning of the year 181.30 164 .62

Contribulions paid into the plan 1.13 1471

Benefits paid {13700 (9.10)

linterest income 11.69 10,96

Re-muusurements

et on plan assets excluding amount included in nel imecest on ihe nel defined liability{asset) - an

- relwrn on plan asset -

Balance at the end of the year 180.42 18130

Net defined benefit liabitity 329 (11.62)]

(ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehiensive income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Acturial {gaink loss on defined benefit obligation {5.07) 9.89

Loss! (retern) on plan asset excluding inlerest income - (0.11

Net gratuity (gain)/ cost (5.07) 0,78

Plan Asset

Plan asset comprises of he following:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Funds managed by Life Inswance Corporation of India 18042 121,30

The Company makes annual contribution to the Life lnsurance Corporation of India ( "LIC*) of an amownt advised by LIC. The Company was not informed by LIC of the
mvestments made by them or the break up of the plan assets into various type of investments

Defined Benefit Obligation

(i) Actuarial Assumptions

The following ate the principal acluarial assumptions al the reporting date (ex) 1 a5 weighted average):
Particulars As at As al
31 March 2022 3t March 2021
Diiscounl rate 6.90% 6.45%
Salary growth rale 6.00% 6.00%
Up to 35 years: 25% p.a  Up (0 35 years: 25% p.g|
Allrition vate 35 yrs & above: 3% pa 35yrs&above: 3% pa
Weighited average duration of defined benefit 9 years 9 yem's
The weighled average ptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost as sel out below;
Agswinplions regarding future monality expenience are sel in accordance with the standard (able - TALM 20012-14, The Company these a plions with its

projecied long-rerm plans of prowih and p industry dards. The discount rate 15 based on the govemmen! securities yietd

Gratnty is applicable only (0 employecs drawing a salaty in [ndian rupees and 1here are no other foreign defined benefil grannty plans

(i) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporcting date (0 one of the acluarial assimptions, holding oller assumptions constant, would have atfected the defined benefit obligation
by 1he amounis shown below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rale (1% movement) (14.74) 1717 (13.84) 16.19
Future salary grosy (h (1% movemen(} 16,90 (1481} 1587 (138))
Attrition rale (1% moveiment) 072 {0.96) 0,18 (0.24)

Although the analysis does not take account of (he ful) distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumplion shown

AMANGALAM
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Financial Insiroments- Fair values aml vish management {conlinued)

Measurement of Mir valnes

The following methods and plions were used (o estimate the fair values.

The fan values of imvestments in mowal fund amits is based on the net asset valoe (NAV ) as stated by the issucts of these aniuwal fingd vz m: the pebished stalements a5 at balance sheet date
NAY represents the price sl which the issuer will issue further anits of mutal fund and (e peice a1 which issuers will redecra such wonts from the investors

Financial risk managemen

The Company's aclivilies expase it 10 a variely of inancial risks. crediu visk, liquidity risk and market risk
Risk managenient (i amewori

Credit rish

Credit tisk is the risk of Fnancial loss 1o the company il a ¢ ar
from customers, loans and investment in mulual funds

The Company 15 coposed oo corlin nsk ag @ result of the nsk of couen panties def: o then abligai The Company’s expasure (2 aedil sk primanily relates 1o myesiments, accolnls
receivalble and cash and cash equivalenis The Company monitors and limits its exposure 10 credit risk on & conlinuous basis. To manage his the Company perindically reviews e financial
reliability of its customers, taking into account the financial condilion, currenl economic trends and analysis of Wistorical bad debis and ageing of accoums receivables The carrying amount of
financial assets represenls maximum credil risk exposure

y 10 a Gnancial | fails 1o mect its contractual oblivations, and arises principally from company’s receivables

The C blickes an all for credit loss thal represents its estimale of expecled losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the pasl and Ihe recent collection trend. The

[rany

WAKITM I exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily [rom trade receivables amounting to INR 661 15 million (31 March 202 | :IMR 858 97 million)

The Company has no sigaificant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from aperalions There is no significant concentration of credit risk
The movement in allowance for credil boss in respect of rade receivables duning the yeur was as Follows:

Allowannee for credit boss Asal As al
3 March 2021 31 Mlareh 2021
Balance al the beginning of the year 2696 31 46
I'rovision created during the year {a.26} 11t
Tmpairment loss recognised/ (reversed) (2 54} (15510)
Ealance at the #nd of the year 20,16 26,96

Credil risk on cash and cash equivalents and other hank balances is limited as the Company penerally Iransacts with banks and financial institutions with Iigh eredu ratings assigned by domestic
credit rating agencies

The Coinpany allocales cach exposure 1o a eredit risk prade based on Lhe hisloric trend of receivables movement belween the ageing buckers The loss rates are calculated based on the simple
average of the trend in receivatle agomng

Averige Loss Rate

Ageing Period As at Asat
31 March 2022 3 Alarch 2021
Not due - -
L.ess than & months 4 12% B.53%
G monihs - 1 year IO R} 42 55%
| - 2 years ol T B S0
2 - 3 years or more than 3 years 100 0 100, 00%
=2 )
Liquidity risk

Liquidity rigk is the risk that \he company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with ils financial liabilities ihat are setled by delivering cash or another financial assel The
Company's approach (o managing hquidily is to ensure, as far as possible, Lhat it will always have sufficient liquidily to meet is liabiliies when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without meurring unacceplable bosses or risking damape (o the Company's reputation

The Company believes thal \he working capital is sufficiont 10 meet ils current requirements Accordmely, no liquidity risk is perceived The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted
contractual maturities of significant fimancial liabilines as of 31 March 2022;

Pariticulars Payable within 1 year More cham | year
Trade payables S 39 -
Borrowings 155004 602 69
Lease liabililies 12352 2,542 36
Qther financial liabilities 14177

The 1able below provides details regarding the undiscounted contraciual maturities of significant financial liabilities a5 of 31 March 202t

Parliculars Payable within 1 year Move than | yf:nl'.
Trade payables 139008 -
Borrowinus 1305 535 673 35
Leasc liabilities 10934 1.689 .90
Other financial liabilities 133 68

3] Market risk
Markel risk is Ihe risk thal the Fair value of future cash flows of & financial instrument will Auctuzle because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity

prices
Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed 1o currency risk 1o the exient that Ihere is a mismatch between the 1es in winch Ir iong are d inated and the functional currency of Lhe Company The
functional currency of 1he Company is INR and the Company does nol have any ial Foreisn L ions during the years ended 31 barch 2022 and 31 March 2021

Cazh ftow and fair value inderest rate risk

The Company's main inlerest tale risk arises from lang-tevmi borrowings with wriable rates, which expose the Company o cash Now inlerest rate risk. The interest rate on the Company s financial
instruments iz based on markel rates The Company monitors (he moveraent in mterest rales on an ongoiny, basis

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposute of the Company's borrowing 10 mierest rate changes al (he end of the year are as follows:

Finuncial labilities (bank horrewiugs) Az at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate long term bormowings inclading curren maturities G27.72 598 36
Sensitivity
Impazt on profit or {loss)
Parliculars A al Asal
31 Maech 2022 31 March 2021
. 1% increage in vanable rate 16.28) (599
S =] O(‘f' 194 decrease in vanable rale 628
%l' N'l I interest rate sensitivily 15 based on the closing balance of variable mierest rate borrowings (rom banks and Minancial institulions
hi @\
‘{{. [T |
1
| =y
® Lo}




Fapubar ¥ehicles and Services Limited

MNoics (o the financial nis {conti J]

{All anmourts m Indian Rupees milliony

34 Leases

The Company has taken showrooms and service centres on lease (rom various parties lrom where business operations are perforreed The leases typically run for a period of 1 year - 30 years Lease
payments are reneuotialed nearing the expiry w rellect market rentals

{3 Lenne liubilities

Following are the changes in (he leage labilities for the year ended 31 Maich 2022 and 31 March 2021

Particulars As at Asal
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2021
Balance as a1 | April 1,709 24 1,699 45
Additions 6% 46 156 71
Finance cost accrucd during Lhe period 212 4] 17202
Derecognition of lzase liability during the year (1353) {3 03)
Remeasurement o account of modilication mna B
Renl concession received * (47T (39 90}
Payment of lease liabilities (319 44y (269 H2)
Balance as al 31 Maorch 2022 2,006,258 1,799.24
Mon-currem lease habilities 2,542 36 1,689 20
Curren Jease liabililies 12392 |04 34

*+ The Company has renegoliated with certain landlords on the rent concession due 10 COVID 19 pandemic. Thege renl concessions are short tenm in nature and meats the ather condiions specified
in the nolification issued by the Central Government in consltation with Mational Financial Reponing Auboiity dated 2dih July 2020 as Companies {Indian Accounting Slandards) Amendment
Rules, 2020 with effect from 15t April 2020 Thus, in accordance wih the said nobfication, the Company has elected to apply exemption as the concession does il necessilale a lease modification
as emvisaged m the Standard by recording m the "Other income”

I respert of wnivovable property Laken under lease, the lease agreements are duly cxecuted in Favour of Lhe lessee, except for certain lease agreements where Company is in the process of execiling
1he lease apgreemants

(ri) Maitwrity wolysis — vesfraetuef auiisevietod el flons

Particulars As al Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than one year 32591 265 19
Onie to five years 1, 37766 993 32
Mure than five years 347730 1,705 24
Tutul undiscounted lease liabilities 5,150,87 2.961.75
(iti) Rigin-nf-itse ascers
Right-ol-use assets relaled 10 leased properties that do not meat the definition of inyesiment property sre | 1 a5 propeny, plant and
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at 1 April 1,403 63 1,372 58
Addition 1o right-ol-use assets 1,021 03 156 71
Dispasil (0 o) (2.84)
Rent modification 2091 8261
Depreciation for the vear (223.25) (206.43)
Halance ar 31 March 2,221.56 1, 403,63
(i) Amrcrivars recognised i storement of profit or foss
Parliculars Year ended Year ended
3 Mareh 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Interest on bease liabihities 21241 17202
Depreciation on right-of-use asiels 223 15 206 43
) A recognived i statensent of caxle flones
Farticolars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total cash oullow for leases {319 44} (269 62)

frilEdperating feases <
The Company is obligaled undar llable operating leases for its cenain office prennses which are rencwable at the option of both the lessor and lessee Todal renial expenses under such leases
amounted 1o Rs 83 76 million (31 March 2021:Rs 35 15 million) These arrangements do not qualify as a lease as per 1he requirements of Tnd AS 116

(b) Operaiing lease as a lessor
The Company has leased o building under operating lease There is escatation and renewal clause in the lease apreements and sub-lziting is not permitted. The lease is cancellable and 1he 1oial
lease income recognised during the year wag INR 2.77 million{31 March 2021 Rs 2 32 million)

35 Capital Management
The Company's policy is W mainlain a stable capital hase s0 as w0 niaintain investor, creditor and maket confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. Management monitors capial
an the basis of relurn on capilal employed as well as 1he debt 1o 1otal equity 1atio. For e purpose of debr 1o 1otal equity ratio, debt considered js long-lerm and short-term borrowings Total equity
comnprise of issued share capital and all ather equity reserves

As at As al

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total equily atiributable to the equity sharelelders of the Company (A) 2.040.77 1,967.23
Lomue-term borrosvingg 02 6% H13 15
Short-term borrowings 1.550.04 1,305 55
Toral horrowings 215273 1,975,920
Less: cash and cash equivalents (50.00) {352 05)
iAdjusted nel debt (B) 2,102.73 1.625.95
|Adjusted net debt Lo total equicy ratio {B/A) 1.03 0.83




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Neotes o dhe standalone financial stalenents {continued)
{All amounts i Indian Rupess million)

I

Related parties

£ Nanwes of related pavites and descripiron of relationship:

{a} Entity having significont influence over the Company

(b} Subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries

BanyanTree Growth Capital I, LLC, Mauritius

Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited, India

Popular Autoworks Private Limited, India
Yision Molots Private Linited, India
Futtukaran Cars Private Limiled India
Popular Auta Dealers Privale Limited, India

Kultukaran Green Private Lunited, India (Formerly Buttukaran Pre Owned Cars Privale Limited, India)

Avila Insurance Broking LLP, India {1ill 29 Oerober 2021

() Onher related parties with whom the Company had transacrions during the year

- Key managemen| personnel and their relatives {KMP)

- Entines in which KMP has significant influence

It fefated party transaetions,

{a} The Company has entered into the following Iransactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 :

Mr Erancis K Paul, Whole Time Direcilor

Mr John K Paul, Managing Dhrector

Mr Maveen Philip, Direclor

Mr lJacob Kuran, Director

Mrs Preeti Reddy, Director

Mr George Joseph, Director {we £ 1 July 2021)
Mr Rabul Kwup, Nominee Direclor

Mr Joln Verghese, Chief Financial Officer

Mr  Philip Chacko Mundanilkunnathil , Chief Execitive Officer (nll 7 January 2022)

Mr ¥Warun Thazhathu Veedu , Company Secretary

Prabal Motors Privale Limited, India
Kuttukaran Homes LLP India

Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development, India

Keracon Equipment Private Limited, India

Particulars

Year ended
3t March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Revenue Trom operalions

Popular &uto Dealers Private Limiled
Popular Mepa Motors {India) Privale Limiled
Prabal Motors Private Limiled

Yision Mators Private Limited

Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development
Lease Rental

Francis K Paul

Jobn K Paul

Popular Mega Motors (India} Privale Limiled
Kuttukaran Homes LLP

Vision Moters Private Limited

Guarantee comniission received

Popular Autodealers Private Limited

Popular Meya Motors (India} Private Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited

Income [rom reat

Popular Auto Dealers Private Luniled
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limiled
[ntercorporale loan repaid by subsidiarics
Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Indercorporate loan given

Kutiukaran Cars Privare Limiled

Interest on loan to related partics

Popular Autoworks Privale Limited
Purchase ol asscis

Popular Mega Motors {India) Private Limited
Prabal Metors Private Limited

Papular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limiled

[nvestnient

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Purchase ol vehiclesfaccessories and spares
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Mega Motors {Indiz) Private Limited
Vizion Molors Private Limited

Expense mer by the Company

Kutiukaran Instutule for Human Resource Development
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Popular Awtoworks Private Limired

Popular Mega Motors { Indin) Private Limited

Vision Molors Privaie Limiled

470
142
150
0G7
235
079
012
I6 68
023
062
331
0353

231
046

202
1500
642

J65

156
115
[ENIE]
[FR 1
ool
004

192
069
Gl
1325
24

064
™)
013

217
036

41¢

764

080
012
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Motes do the standalone 6 ial st { inued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupecs milhon)

36 Related partias (continued)
1L Related pariy transacrions |

Parliculars

Year cnded
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Expense met om bebalf of ihe Company

Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development 08 oln
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited G463 X
Popular Autoworks Private Limnited 1 07 052
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 476 214
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited LX) .
Prabal Motors Privete Limiled 146 asl
Vision Motors Private Limited 223 110
Kutiukaran Homes LLP 024 216
Repairs and maintenance
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 005
Vision Motors Private Limited 003 ]|
Papular Mega Molors (India) Private Limited 054 041
Sale of assets
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limiled 075
Popular Autoworks Privare Limited
Prabal Molors Private Lid 0403 002
Remuneration (Key Management Personnal}*
Francis K Paul Tas 567
Iohn K Paul L 567
John Verghese 627 546
Philip Chacko Mundanilkunnathil 10.00 1061
Varun Thazhathu Yeedu 238 205
Sitting fees to Independent directors 338 095
Commniission and incentive
Francis K Paul 1.50 1 50
John K Paul 150 | 50
Others o Lo .
11 Batance receivable frum (pavable) o related poplics ax at the batance sheet dare:
Particulars As ol As
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loans te related parties
Papular Autoworks Private Limited 46 83 7590
Kutwkaran Cars Private Limited 1500
Trade receivables
Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development . 001
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited an ER V)
Popular Autoworks Private Limited 010 130
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 121 400
Prabal Motors Private Limited ol2 -
Vision Mators Private Limited 022 021
Commission and imcentive payable
Francis K Paul ) 50 150
John K Panl 150 1 50
Ohers 110
Dues to crediters for expenses and others
Popular Auls Dealers Private Limited (1437) (9.18)
Kuttukaran Homes LLP (1 55) {15%9)
Popular Mega Molors (India) Private Limited (001} (002)
Vision Motors Private Limited {191) {1 14)
Francis K Paul - {0 22)
John K Paul - {006)
Rent deposit payable
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited (020 (020
Corporale guaraniees
Popular Auto Dealers Private Lirmited 101 59 105 60
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 648 21 386 52
Yision Molors Private Limited 1374 2794

All the related party transactions enlered during the year were in ordinary course of business and are on arm’s lenpth basis




Poputar Vehicles and Services Limited
Mates to the standalonc financial stalemenis (continued)
(Al amounis in lndan Rupees milhon}

37 Covid-19 outbreak was declared as a plobal pandemic by World Health Organisation. The Company has been m operalion consistently with work fiom home anangemenls
and in compliance with the direclives issued by ihe Government authorities. Accordingly, as on balnce sheet date of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, based on lacls
and circumisiances existing 85 of 1hat date, the Company does nol alicipate any material uncertainities which affecis itg Hqudily pesition and also ability o conbimine as a
peing concem. However, the impacl assessment of Covid-19 iz a cominuing process given e uncertainities associaled will its naiure and duration

38 Assets classified as held for sale
In respect of the owned land at Elayavoor Panchayath at Kannur, the Company has an notice from the Special Tahasildar & Competent Authoriry, (LAY NH Unit on 10
August 2020 for the acquisition of 25.79 ares of land with an acquisition award of Rs. 31.47 million. The Company have filed and appeal with Hon'ble District Colteetor,
Fannur, Ferala on 19 January 2021 for additional compensation. As at 31 March 2021, the same has been disclosed as asset held tor sale at canying value (being lower of
Iheir air value less cost to sell). The sale is expected io be completed within a period of one year

3% a1 Mo funds have been advanced or loaned o investad (gither from borrowed funds o share premium or any olher sources or kind of funds) by the Company to ot n any other
persons of entities, including foreign entities {“lnermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recmded in writing o othenwise, that the Intenmediary shall, directly o
indiectly lead o mvest in other paisons o entities identified in any manner whalsoever by ac an behalf of the Company (" Ultiuae Beneficiaies”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalfolihe Ulimale Bengficianes

3%b) Mo lunds have beerveceived by the Company flon any persons o entines, meloding Forsign entitics (“Funding Parties™), with the undwisanding, whether reconfeid m
wnimg or olherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the

Fundiny Party [“Limate Beneticiories ) or provide any guavantee, secluity of the like on behalf ot the Lilnmate Beneficiaries

40 Ratios as pev the Schedule 11T vequirements =

a) Current Ratio = Current Asscts divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Cunent assels 3.141.72 295112
Current liabiliies 2.906,44 2.485.50
Ratio 1.08 L19
5 Change irom previous yean -0.24%, 32.22%

Ratic increased in FY21 is mainly due to increase in profilability 1atios and ECLGS loan availed in March 2021 reduce short term borowings and balance beld in bank

balances

B} Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refors te sum of current & non current horrowings

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Cunient borrowings [a] 1,550 04 1,305 35
Mo corvent borrowings [b] 602.69 673 35
Total debt 215273 1.978.90
Tolal cquity 2,040.77 1.967.23
Ralio 105 1.01
% Change from previous year 3.90% =12.90%

¢} Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available to service debt divided by total interest and horrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021
Profit before lax 137.18 22230
Finance ¢osl 371461 336,59
Depreciation and amorlisahon expense 41642 392.20
Earnings available to service debt 928.21 951.09
Interest cost 37461 136,59
Mon-curtent borrowings 60269 673,35
Cuirent borrowings 1.550.04 1.305.55
Debt service coverage ratio 0.37 0.41
%% Change from previous year end -9 76%, 21.00%

d) Return on Equity/Return on Investrvent = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Net profit after tax 6975 15851
Total equily 204077 1.967.23
Ratio 341% 8.006%
%% Change from previous year -57 6% 14.0%%

Ralio decreased mainly due 1o Cther expenses has been increased by 41% as compared to last year, mainly due to cost reductions in the previous year due to covid 1%and

addional ¢ost incued on new locations




Popular Yehicles and Sevvices Limited
Notes to the standalone financial stat ts (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million}

40 Raftios as per the Schedule 10 vequirements * (continved)

e} Met profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 22(

Met Profil after tax 6975 15851
Sales 18,655.31 16,916 85
Ratio 037 0.94%
% Change from previous year 60 64% 0.01%

Ratio decreased mainly due 1o Other expenses as been increased by 41% as compated (o last year, mainly due (0 cost reductions in the previous year due to covid 19 and

additional cost meurred on new localions

fi Inventory Turnover Ratie = Cost of matcrials consumed divided by closing inventory

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 Mareh 2021

Purchase of stock in trade [a] 15,343 89 12,275.32
Changes in inventories of stock-in-irade Tb] (57930 73952
Cosl of matenal consumed [a]+{b] 1526959 14,0714.84
Closmg inventory 2,004 64 1.425.34
Ratio 013 0,14
% Chanpe from previous year 30.0% -28.6%

Ratio increased in FY22 mainly due to FY21 overall revenue from operations affected by lockdown in 1s1 Quarter and higher closing invenrory in FY21

Ralio decreased in FY21 mainly due Lo overall revenue fvom operations alfected by lockdown in 1st Quarter and higher closmg invenlory in March 20

g) Net capital Turnover Ratio = Tolal incomve divided by Net Working capital whereas net working capital= current asscls - current liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Total meome 1877615 17,042 53
Curtent assel [a] 304172 295112
Current liability [b] 2,906 44 2.485.50
Met working caplial [a]-[b] 23528 465 62
Ratio 0.01 03
%0 Change lrom previous year -6 T4 2500%

Ratio decreased mainly due to decrease in working capital, Since ELCGS loan teceived in FY21 adjusted in short 1erm bovowings and balance held in cash & bank balance

. ECLGS Loan 1s treated as long term loan.

Ratic increazed mainly due 19 betler profirability in Fy21 and ELCGS loan received in FY21 adjusted in short term bormowings and balance held in cash & bank balance |

ECLGS Loan is (realed as long lenn loan.

h) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = Revenwe from operations divided by trade receivables

Parliculars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Revenue from operalions 18,655.31 16916 85
Trade receivable 661.15 85897
Trade receivable iurnover ratic 28.22 19.69
% Chanpe from previous year end 43.3% 44, 9%

Trade receivable tumover ralio has been increased in FY 22 a5 result of beller collechon received fromn the customers

Ralio decreased in FY21 mainly due 10 overall vevenne from operations affected by tockdown in 15t Quarter and higher receivable in March 21

iy Retwrn on Capital cmployed = Exrnings beferc interest and taxes( EBIT) divided by capital cmployed (Total equity + Borrowings)

Particalars

As at 31 Mareh 2002

As at 31 March 2021

Profit befire tax 137.18 222,30
Finance cosl 374 61 336,59
Earmnings before interest and 1ax 501.79 558 89
Total equity[a] 204077 196723
Total borrowings[b] 2,152.73 1,972.90
Capital employcd |a]+|b] 4,193.50 3.946.13
Ratio 012 014
% Change fiom previous year -14.3% -1 7%

—
—

Trade Payvable Turnover Ratio = Purchases divided by closing trade payvables

Particulars As at 31 March 2932 As at 31 March 2021
Purchase of stock in trade 13,848.89 13,275.32
Tiade payable 50039 33908
Trade payible lurnover catie 31.67 inls
%5 Change from previous year end -19 1% 236,3%

Ratio increased in FY 21 mainly due to higher payables im FY 20, smee due to covid 19 impact in FY 20 Payment relate [0 OEM were outslanding

* Management have piven explaination only for the vanances above 25% during the current yea
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Notes to the standalone financial sta {continoed)
(Al amoums in Indian Rupees million}
41 With rezand 10 the new anendients under “Tivision |l of Schedule [ under “Part | — Balance Sheet - General Instiuclions for preparation of Balonce Sheet” thete aie no

balancesftransactions ihat are required to be disclosed with regard to the following clauses L (iiL(ii(iv ), (vii LOOUxD (xR0, (xv) and (xvi) for the Compaty

Wil regard to the new amendments under “Division M of Schedule " under “Part 11 = Statement of Profit and Lass - General Insuuctions for preparavon of Stalement of
Frofi and Loss™ there are no Wansactions that ave vequired w bis disclosed with vegand to the following clavses Bl aod Bin) for 1he Conpany

42 Consequent to amendments made in Schedule LI of Companies Act, 2013, being made effective from 1 April 2021, previous year numbers pertaiming to cunent maluritiss
of long term debt of Rz.99 88 million have been reclassified from 'Other financial liabilities {current)' to 'Bomowings {current}’ Similary, an amount of Rs 280 49 million

perlaining to securily deposits has been reclassified from Loans to Other financial assets

Further, dues to other creditors and accruals amounting to Rs. 13561 million have been reclassified from "Other financial liabilities (curvent) to Trade payables - dues of

olher than micro enterpnses and small enterprizes'

43 There are no significant subsequeni evenis that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date

As per our report of even date anached
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